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l~VM .,r- S __ T A TE OF MAINE 

OFF,.:..(! 

lnter--Departmental Memorandum Date September 8, 1976 

Doris Hayes. Deputy secretary of stateJept. Secretary of state 

From s. Kirk studstrup. Assistant . Dept. Attorney General · 
., 

S:i.bjec. status of Public Administrators 

Your memorandum of September 3, 1976, asked whether the 
office of a Public Administrator is a civil or judicial office 
for purposes of determining the term of office. 

Although the statutory term for a public administrator 
is four years, i:f: this is considered a "civil office" the 
incumbent would remain in office until a successor is appointed 

· and qualified, as you have correctly noted. 5 M.R.S.A. §_3. 
This question has been addressed to our office before, and I am 
enclosing a copy of an opinion dated May 16, 1969, which concluded 
that a public administrator is a "civil officer." We have reviewed 
and confirmed this previous opinion. 

SKS:m£e 

Encl. 

Assistant Attorney General 
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STATE OF :-fAI::SE 

. DEI>ARTM:E:-.T OF THE .-\TTOR:Sf:Y G]=::-; E_ILH. 

: At;ousTA. )LuxE 04330 

Honorable Charles T: Trumbull 
-Executive Council Chambers 
State House·. 
Augusta, Maine • 

Dear Counci•11or Tr"urnbull: 

May- 16, 1969 -

··.-z. 

You have pre·'sented two questions for co~sideratio~ involving:· 
(1) Public Adrnini"strators and {2) the st.ate Contingency Account. · 

(1.) Does a publ.ic.adrnin;i.strator of ·a county~ ·appointed for 
a term of 4 years.pursuant to 18 H.R.S.A~ § 1651, serve_until his 
successor· is appointed and qualif~ed~ or does.the term of a _ 
public administrator expire by operation of law at the conclusion 
of 4 years?· The Governor, with the advice and consent of° the ·, : 
Executive Council, appoints public administrators in each of the 
counties o·f the State for terms of 4 years~. In order to determine·. 
whether a _public administrator is permitted to· hold office for a :: ·.: · " >. · 
term exceeding the statutory 4-year period, -it· is necessary to · · · 
determine whether a public administrator is a.civil officer within. 
the meaning of 5 M.R.S.A. § 3. Sectiqn 3 permits a_ civil officer .. ··. 
to hold office _during the term.tor which he is appointed and for 
the further period of time .until. his successor ·in office· is. appointed . 

• and qualified. ·A public. administrator has bee~ regarded·as a 
publ.ic officer.·.· Los Angeles County v. Kellogg_, 146 Cal. 590, 
80 P. 861; and In Re-Miller's v. State, S_Cal. 2d 588, 55 P. 2d 491. 
A civil•officer is one regarded as an officer who is in public· 
service but who is not of the military. u. s. v: American Brewing 
Co., 296 F. 772, and State v. Clarke, 21 Nev. 333, 31 P. 545. 
\·i"e conclude that a public administrator is a civil' of~icer and,· 
therefore, holds office during the tenn_for which he is appointed 
and until his successor in office has been appointed and qualified. 
5 M.R.S.A. ~ 3. ~ 



P.onorable Charles T~ Trurr.bull -2- Nay 16., 1969 

{2) You next _ask whether az:-.ounts :f.ro:r; the St-':lte Contingent 
Account ir.a.y be allocated to a state decartr.ient for one of the· 
_reasons set forth in•S;M.R.S.~. § 1507: in anticipation of the 
Jc.epartrr.ent I s receipt ,of. future re·venue~., · with a proviso that such 
allocation be reimbu1:sed in the sa;r;e fiscal. year that the alloc:a­
tion g_ccurs? We ans~.;er in the affirmative. The third sentence of 
§ 1507.provides·that the Governor and Executive Council shall de-· 
termine· the necessity for allocations fro:n the State Contingent 
Account. rn·the·event_that the allocation is reimb~rsed by the 
department in the_·_sarne fiscal year in which that allocation occurs, 
and provided the allocation is made for a purpose specified in 
§1508, it_appea.rs that-t;he.rriaking of such an allocation in antici~­
pation_of the receipt of revenues and its reimbursement would not 
be illegal. · Wh~ther one of the conditions _specified · in § · 1508 .... 
exists a:s a condition precedent to the allocation, is a question 
of fact to be determined _by the Governor and Executive Council in_ : ·, 
the exercis~ of· their discretion. Vandegrift v: · Riley., 220 Cal. · 
.340, 30 P. ·2d 516. ~ 

Thank you for your·attention • 
. ~--· 

... · Very ~~~I\}) 
cf::: w. Benoit, 

1£// 
Assistant Attorney General 

.TI'ffiJr:H 
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